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Independent Auditor’s Report

_
pwec T

TO THE MEMBERS OF EVERGRANDE HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 73 to 151, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Annual Report 2018

67



68

Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are:

o Health Management Segment — Assessment of net realisable value of properties under development and

completed properties held for sale

o New Energy Vehicle Segment — Estimated fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

Key Audit Matters

Health Management Segment — Assessment of net
realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale.

Refer to note 4(a) of critical accounting estimates and
assumptions and note 9 of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group holds properties that are health and living
projects for sale under the Health Management Segment.

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We have performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

0

(ii)

We understood, evaluated and validated the
internal control over the Group’s process in
determining the costs to completion of PUD and
net realisable values of PUD and PHS based on
prevailing market conditions;

As part of our risk assessment in this area, we
compared the relevant PUD and PHS balances
against the result of management’s net realisable
value assessment made in the prior years to
consider, with hindsight, whether management’s
net realisable value assessment estimation process
had been subject to management bias;



Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

At 31 December 2018, properties under development (ii) We then challenged the reasonableness of
("PUD") and completed properties held for sale (“PHS") management’s key estimates for:

amounted to RMB11,170,539,000 and RMB1,169,672,000
respectively, and accounted for 56% of the Group’s total
assets. Management assessed the net realisable value
("NRV") of the carrying amounts of PUD and PHS
according to their expected NRV amounts, taking into
account the anticipated costs to completion based on the
Group's past experience and the expected net sales value
based on prevailing market conditions. No provision was
made based on management’s assessment.

We focused on this NRV assessment because the
determination of net realisable values of PUD and PHS
involved critical accounting estimates on the selling price,
variable selling expenses and estimated costs to
completion of PUD.

Estimated selling price which is based on the
prevailing market conditions, we compared
the estimated selling price to the recent
market transactions, such as the Group's
selling price of the pre-sale units in the same
project or the prevailing market price of the
comparable properties with similar size, usage
and location;

Estimated variable selling expenses as a
percentage of the related estimated selling
price of the properties, we compared the
above estimated percentage with the actual
average selling expenses to revenue ratio of
the Group in the current year; and

Estimated costs to completion for PUD, we
reconciled the estimated costs to completion
to the budgets approved by management and
examined, on a sample basis, the signed
construction contracts or compared to the
actual costs of similar completed properties of
the Group.

We found that management’s estimates on the net
realisable value of the Group’s PUD and PHS were
supported by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters

New Energy Vehicle Segment — Estimated fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Refer to note 4(b) of critical accounting estimates and
assumptions and note 13 of financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2018, the Group held 32% preference
shares of an automobile group with a call option granted
to the original shareholder exercisable for a period within
the next five years. It was accounted for as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss and measured at a fair
value of RMB3,979,937,000 as at 31 December 2018.
Independent external valuation of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss was obtained to support
management’s estimates.

The valuation of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss was dependent on certain key assumptions
that required significant management judgement. These
included the operation forecast, projected growth rates,
weighted average cost of capital, and exercise probabilities
of the call option.

thereon.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We have performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

0

(ii)

(iii)

We evaluated the independent external valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

We involved our in-house valuation experts to
assess the Income Approach — discounted cash
flow model, and Binomial Lattice Model approach
used by the external valuer;

We discussed with management and assess the
appropriateness of valuation assumptions used.
We tested the valuation by evaluating the
underlying assumptions including operation
forecast, weighted average cost of capital,
projected growth rates, exercise probabilities of
the call option, based on our industry knowledge
as well as underlying supporting documentation.
We also tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
valuation computation.

We found that the valuation methodology applied in
determining the fair value of the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is acceptable and the
assumptions made by management are supported by
available evidence.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Yeung Chor Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2018

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Prepayments
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Intangible assets
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Properties under development
Completed properties held for sale
Contract assets
Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total (deficit)/equity

Note

Qo
® T
S

20

X 0
o o ®
c o

11

15
17

31 December
2018
RMB’'000

1,534,925
590,743
183,644

3,979,937

5,199
34,472

6,328,920

34,619
507,137
1,024,442
11,170,539
1,169,672
9,942
367,825
1,570,014

15,854,190

22,183,110

250,936
101,536
(1,014,940)

(662,468)

(662,468)

31 December
2017
RMB’000

704,025
221,923
5,108
3,161
6,577

940,794

128
458,851
37,827
3,529,677
170,174
217,193
2,301,683

6,715,533

7,656,327

250,936
121,760
460,548

833,244
(1,003)

832,241
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2018

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 19(b) 11,248,425 3,720,000
Finance leases 19(c) 45,307 77,165
11,293,732 3,797,165
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 7,330,851 640,549
Contract liabilities 18 99,284 —
Receipt in advance from customers 18 — 507,542
Borrowings 19(b) 3,613,900 1,539,400
Finance leases 19(c) 8,705 18,710
Current income tax liabilities 499,106 320,720
11,551,846 3,026,921
Total liabilities 22,845,578 6,824,086
Total (deficit)/equity and liabilities 22,183,110 7,656,327

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 151 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019
and were signed on its behalf by:

SHI SHOUMING PENG JIANJUN
Director Director

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited



Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Continuing operations
Revenue 5 3,133,018 1,328,474
Cost of sales 21 (1,987,750) (482,172)
Gross profit 1,145,268 846,302
Other costs, net 23 (776) (1,423)
Other losses 24 (141,839) —
Selling and marketing costs 21 (265,938) (70,526)
Administrative expenses 21 (334,940) (134,092)
Net impairment losses on financial assets (4,523) —
Operating profit 397,252 640,261
Finance income 25 21,155 20,609
Finance costs 25 (492,493) (6,136)
Finance (costs)/income, net (471,338) 14,473
Share of net loss of an associate accounted for using
the equity method 12 (1,057,909) —
(Loss)/profit before income tax (1,131,995) 654,734
Income tax expenses 26 (296,383) (349,777)
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations (1,428,378) 304,957
Discontinued operation
Loss from discontinued operation — (3,542)
(Loss)/profit for the year (1,428,378) 301,415
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss:
Currency translation differences (66,331) 3,193
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,494,709) 304,608
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company
arising from:
— Continuing operations (1,429,381) 310,936
— Discontinued operation — (3,188)
(1,429,381) 307,748
Other comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company:
Currency translation differences (66,331) 6,957
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to owners
of the Company (1,495,712) 314,705
Profit/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interests
— Continuing operations 1,003 (7,573)
— Discontinued operation — 1,240
1,003 (6,333)
Other comprehensive loss attribute to non-controlling
interests
Currency translation differences — (3,764)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) attributable to
non-controlling interests 1,003 (10,097)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,494,709) 304,608
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit attributable to
owners of the Company
(expressed in RMB cents per share) 28 (16.544) 3.562

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital Non-
Share Special  contribution Other Exchange Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total  interests equity

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 1 January 2017 250,936 85,582 796 36,746 (17,395) 7,378 191,242 555,285 11,566 566,851

Comprehensive income
Profit/(loss) for the year — — — — — — 307,748 307,748 (6,333) 301,415
Other comprehensive income — — — — 6,957 — — 6,957 (3,764) 3,193

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) — — — — 6,957 — 307,748 314,705 (10,097) 304,608

Transactions with owners
in their capacity as
owners

Release of deemed
contribution from fellow

subsidiaries — — — (36,746) — — — (36,746) — (36,746)
Disposal of discontinued

operation — — — — — — — — (2,472) (2,472)
Transfer to statutory reserve — — — — — 38,442 (38,442) — — —

Total transactions with
owners in their
capacity as owners — — —  (36,746) — 38,442 (38,442)  (36,746) (2,472)  (39,218)

Balance at 31 December
2017 250,936 85,582 796 — (10,438) 45,820 460,548 833,244 (1,003) 832,241
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

Retained
Capital Earnings/ Non-
Share Special  contribution Other Exchange Statutory (accumulated controlling Total
capital  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses) Total interests equity
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

At 1 January 2018 250,936 85,582 796 - (10,438) 45,820 460,548 833,244 (1,003) 832,241
Comprehensive income
(Loss)/profit for the year — — — — — — (1,429,381) (1,429,381) 1,003 (1,428,378)
Other comprehensive income — — — — (66,331) — — (66,331) — (66,331)
Total comprehensive loss — — — — (66,331) — (1,429,381) (1,495,712) 1,003 (1,494,709)
Transactions with owners in

their capacity as owners
Transfer to statutory reserve — — — — — 46,107 (46,107) — — —
Total transactions with

owners in their capacity as

owners — — — — — 46,107 (46,107) — — —
Balance at 31 December 2018 250,936 85,582 796 —  (76,769) 91,927  (1,014,940) (662,468) —  (662,468)

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations 29(a) (3,264,515) (1,700,122)
Interest paid (527,794) (194,573)
Income tax paid (145,892) (61,551)
Net cash used in operating activities from continuing operations (3,938,201) (1,956,246)
Net cash generated from operating activities from discontinued
operation — 34,780
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress (700,903) (339,526)
Purchases of intangible assets (2,437) (283)
Interest received 21,155 20,609
Investment accounted for using the equity method (5,688,075) —
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights (20,279) (150,457)
Sales proceeds from short term investments — 7,463
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries — (3,120)
Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations (6,390,539) (465,314)
Net cash used in investing activities from discontinued operation — (1,951)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings 29(b) 13,292,325 4,576,200
Repayments of borrowings 29(b) (3,689,400) (555,460)
Repayments of loans from fellow subsidiaries — (362,293)
Repayment of capital element of finance leases 29(b) (6,562) (4,900)
Net cash generated from financing activities from
continuing operations 9,596,363 3,653,547
Net decrease/(increase) in cash and cash equivalents (732,377) 1,264,816
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,301,683 1,033,585
Effect of exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents 708 3,282
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 11 1,570,014 2,301,683

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is engaged
in “Internet+” community health management, international hospitals, elderly care and rehabilitation, medical
cosmetology and anti-ageing (collectively, the “Health Management Segment”) in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), as well as the investment in high technology new energy vehicle manufacture (collectively, the “New
Energy Vehicle Segment”). Previously, the Group also engaged in magazine publishing, distribution of magazines,
digital business and provision of magazine content (collectively, the “Media Segment”) in Hong Kong which was
disposed in November 2017.

The Company is incorporated in Hong Kong as a limited liability company under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The address of its registered office is 23rd Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and it has deposit receipt listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands, unless otherwise stated.

Key event

The Group acquired an associate on 3 July 2018. Details refer to notes 12 and 13.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements comply with the applicable requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with the exception of Section 381 which requires a company to
include all its subsidiary undertakings (within the meaning of Schedule 1 to Cap. 622) in the Company'’s
annual consolidated financial statements. Section 381 is inconsistent with the requirements of HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements so far as Section 381 applies to subsidiary undertakings which are
not controlled by the Group in accordance with HKFRS 10.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

New amendments to existing standards adopted by the Group

The following new amendments to existing standards are mandatory for the first time for the financial
period beginning 1 January 2018. The adoption of these amended standards does not have any
significant impact to the results or financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 financial instruments with HKFRS 4 insurance
contracts

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers to Investment Property

HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Save for the impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 disclosed in note 2.2, the adoption of the
other new and amended standards did not have any significant impact to the results and financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following new standards and interpretations and amendments to standards have been published
that are not mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2018 and have not been early adopted by the

Group:
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
HKAS 28 (Amendment) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint 1 January 2019
Ventures
HKFRS 9 (Amendment) Prepayment features with negative 1 January 2019
compensation
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement 1 January 2019
Annual Improvements to  Clarifying previously held interest in a joint 1 January 2019
HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle  operation under HKFRS3 Business
Combinations and HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements
Clarifying income tax consequences of
payments on financial instruments classified
as equity under HKAS 12 Income Taxes
Clarifying borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation under HKAS 23 Borrowing
Costs
HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
HKFRS 17 Insurance contract 1 January 2021
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an To be determined
(Amendment) investor and its associate or joint venture

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new or revised standards and
amendments, certain of which are relevant to the Group’s operations. According to the preliminary
assessment made by the Group, no significant impact on the financial performance and position of the
Group is expected when they become effective except the one set out below:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all leases being recognised on the balance
sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Impact
Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s operating leases. Management expects
there will be no significant impact on the Group’s financial statements when it becomes effective as the
Group does not have material lease arrangements as lessee.

Date of adoption of Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets for property leases will be measured on transition as if
the new rules had always been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers on the Group's financial statements and also discloses the new accounting policies
that have been applied from 1 January 2018, where they are different to those applied in prior periods.

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018 only resulted in changes in
accounting policies. No adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
The new accounting policies are set out in note 2.12 below.

The effects of the adoption of HKFRS 9 are as follows:

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed
which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 measurement categories including those to be measured
subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss) and
those to be measured at amortised cost.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets measured at amortised cost that are subject to HKFRS 9's
new expected credit loss model either on a 12-month basis or a lifetime basis:

o Trade receivables and contract assets
. Other financial assets at amortised cost (2017: other receivables)
The Group revised its impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets.

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets
The Group applied the simplified approach and recorded lifetime expected losses on its trade
receivables and contract assets.

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost (2017: other receivables)
The Group applied general approach and recorded either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses on its other financial assets at amortised cost (2017: other
receivables).

Adoption of HKFRS 15

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies. The directors of the Group consider the changes on the
Group'’s revenue recognition do not have material impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Impact on financial statements

Under HKFRS 15, for properties that have no alternative use to the Group due to contractual reasons
and when the Group has an enforceable right to payment from the customers for performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue as the performance obligation is satisfied over time in
accordance with the input method for measuring progress.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has assessed and considered that there is an
enforceable right to payment from the customers for performance completed to date for certain
properties, but the Group considered that the adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have a material impact on
the timing of revenue recognition.

For contracts where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
property or service exceeds one year, the transaction price and the amount of revenue from the sales of
completed properties is adjusted for the effects of a financing component, if significant. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group has assessed and considered that the financing component effect
is insignificant.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Adoption of HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Impact on financial statements (Continued)
The following tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been included.

31 December

2017
As originally 1 January 2018
presented Reclassification Restated
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Contract assets — 5,599 5,599
Trade and other receivables 5,599 (5,599) —
Contract liabilities — 507,542 507,542
Receipt in advance from customers 507,542 (507,542) —

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The excess of cumulative revenue recognised in consolidated income statement over the cumulative
billings to purchasers of properties is recognised as contract assets. The contract assets will be
reclassified as receivables when the progress billings are issued or properties are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Under HKFRS 15, the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling
a contract, such as sales commissions, are capitalised as contract assets.

Under HKFRS 15, contract liabilities for progress billing recognised in relation to property.

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

2.3.1Consolidation
(i)  Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies

are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

2.3.1Consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations except for
business combinations under common control. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit
and loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit and
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

2.3.1Consolidation (Continued)
(i) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(iv) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and loss.

2.3.2Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group'’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of post-tax loss of associates’ in the income statement.
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2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

2.3.2 Associates (Continued)
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the income statement.

2.3.3Joint arrangements
The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any
difference between the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint
venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.4 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each group entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entities operate (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Group’s presentation
currency. The Company'’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollar (“HK$").

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gain and losses that relate to borrowings denominated in foreign currencies are
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “finance (costs)/income, net”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “administrative expenses”.

Group entities

The results and financial positions of the group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet of the group entities are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

3 income and expenses for each income statement of the group entities are translated at average
exchange rates; and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and any impairment loss.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 1 to 3 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 to 5 years
Buildings 20 years
Land use rights 50 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within other gains/(losses) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Assets under construction are stated at historical cost less impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the development of the assets which comprises construction costs,
amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and professional fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the assets are transferred to buildings within property, plant and equipment.

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction. The carrying amount of an asset under construction
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.
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2.8

2.9

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Intangible assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line of business
or geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented in the consolidated income
statement, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs of disposal, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

2.12Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and
o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

(@) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group categories its debt
instruments as amortised cost, which are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part
of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or
impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

(b) Equity investments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.
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2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The subsequent changes in fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss within ‘other income
and gains — net’.

(vii) Accounting policy applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the
Group's previous accounting policy.

(@) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current
assets.

(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(vii) Accounting policy applied until 31 December 2017 (Continued)

©

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment
loss include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
o a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

o it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

o observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.
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2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(vii) Accounting policy applied until 31 December 2017 (Continued)
(c) Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

2.13Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The
liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming
the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

2.14 Properties under development

Properties represent the health and living project. Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable variable selling expenses and anticipated cost to completion.

Development cost of property comprises mainly construction costs, cost of land use rights, borrowing costs,
and professional fees incurred during the development period. On completion, the properties are transferred

to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless those will not be realised in one normal
operating cycle.
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2.15 Completed properties held for sale

Properties represent the health and living project. Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
relevant year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less applicable estimated selling expenses to make the sales.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises, raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
noncurrent assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.18 Contract assets and liabilities and costs for obtaining contracts

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains rights to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to the customer. The
combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability depending
on the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance obligations. The contract is an asset
and recognised as contract assets if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure of the
remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities
if the measure of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer within contract assets if
the Group expects to recover those costs.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand and at banks and deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or less.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are included in 'Restricted cash’. Restricted cash are excluded from
cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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2.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method.

2.22 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the respective balance sheet date.

2.23 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.24 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is only recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.24 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.25 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated at a percentage of the employees’
salaries.
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2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’ payables under the plans described above. Other than
the monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administrated funds managed by the PRC government.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong, which is a
defined contribution retirement scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered
funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonus. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

2.26 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2.26 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for sale of health and living projects and render of services, stated net of discounts and returns, if
any. The Group recognises revenue when control of the products has been transferred, the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of health and living projects
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred to the purchaser. Depending
on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may transfer
over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o Provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the purchaser;
o Creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser controls as the Group performs;

o Do not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the contract
costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

For property development and sales contract for which the control of the property is transferred at a
point in time, revenue is recognised when the purchaser obtains the physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the
effect of a financing component if it is significant.
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2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Income from medical cosmetology and health management
Income from medical cosmetology and health management are recognised when the services have been
rendered to customers. The period of these services rendered is usually within a day.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

2.28 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:
o the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and
o the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
2.29 Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.

(i)

(if)

The Group is the lessee other than operating lease of land use rights
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor), are charged to
the profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group is the lessee under operating lease of land use rights

Land use rights under operating lease, which mainly comprised land use rights to be developed for self-
use buildings, are stated at cost and subsequently amortised in the profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the operating lease periods, less accumulated impairment provision.
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2.30 Dividend distribution

(a)

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity holders or
the board of directors, where applicable.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and bank deposits, financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group manages and monitors these exposure
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in the PRC and Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents, bank borrowings, loans from holding and other recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant entities.
The revenue, expenses and borrowings of the foreign operations are denominated in functional
currencies of those operations. The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy and has not
entered into forward exchange contract to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk. However, the
directors monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

5% appreciation in RMB against HK$ 5,602 —
5% depreciation in RMB against HK$ (5,602) —
5% appreciation in RMB against US$ 2,098 6,682
5% depreciation in RMB against US$ (2,098) (6,682)

(ii) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and borrowings. Cash and cash
equivalents and borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rate on cash and cash equivalents and borrowings had been 100
basis point higher/lower with all variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 would decrease/increase by approximately RMB1,094,000 (2017: decrease/increase by
approximately RMB2,499,000).

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its contract assets, trade and other receivables and cash
deposits with banks. The carrying amounts of contract assets, trade and other receivables, restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

For contract assets and trade and other receivables, the management of the Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverability of these receivables at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated with cash deposits at banks since
they are substantially deposited at state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

For credit exposures to customers, credit terms are granted to customers upon obtaining approval from
the Company’s senior management after assessing the credit history of those customers. The Group
closely monitors the collection of progress payments from customers in accordance with payment
schedule agreed with customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and appropriate percentage of down payments.

Meanwhile, the Group has the right to cancel the contracts once repayment from the customers is in
default; it also has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
balances. In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other receivables to ensure that adequate impairment provisions are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of properties for an amount up to 70% of the total purchase
price of the property. Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in note 31. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage loan during the guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee may
demand the Group to repay the outstanding principal of the loan and any interest accrued thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s deposit and resell the property to
recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The directors believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables.

For financial assets originated from 1 January 2018, the following credit risk modelling applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower
o significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower

o significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group and changes in the operating results of
the borrower.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of receivables and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables and contract
assets.

To measure the expected credit losses of trade receivables, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days of initial recognition.

The loss allowance provision of trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 is determined as follows, the
expected credit losses below also incorporate forward looking information.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Over 180 days Over 1 year Over 2 years

and within  and within  and within Over

365 days 2 years 3 years 3 years
Current overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

At 31 December 2018

Expected loss rate 0.10% 1.00% 10.00% 15.00% 20.00%
Gross carrying amount 432,927 260 3,243 - — 436,430
Loss allowance provision 433 3 324 - - 760

Other receivables

Other financial assets at amortised cost include other receivables from third parties and related parties.
The Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for these receivables under the 12 months
expected losses method.

Management considered other receivables from third parties and related parties to be low credit risk as
they have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term.

The expected loss rate of other receivables which are deposit in nature, such as deposits for acquisition
of land use right, construction projects and borrowings, is assessed to be near to zero.

To measure the expected credit losses of other receivables other than deposits, other receivables
excluding deposits have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through
an adequate amount of available financing, including proceeds from pre-sale of health and living
projects, through internal funding resources and bank facilities to meet its working capital requirements.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents and through having available sources of
financing.

To cope with the investment on the New Energy Vehicle Segment business, China Evergrande Group

agreed to provide a three-year unsecured loan in the amount of HK$6,750,000,000 to the Group. The
annual interest rate under the shareholder loan agreement is 7.6% and was provided on 3 July 2018.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group has a number of alternative plans to mitigate the potential impacts on anticipated cash flows
should there be significant adverse changes in economic environment. These include adjusting
development timetable to adapt the market environment and implementing cost control measures. The
Group will pursue such options based on its assessment of relevant future costs and benefits.

With the net current asset position, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group therefore
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial statements.

With the aforementioned activities and plans, the directors of the Company considered the Group's
liquidity risk has been controlled. The directors of the Company has reviewed the working capital
forecast of the Group for the 12 months from 31 December 2018 and are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next 12 months from the date of the consolidated balance sheet.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscount cash flows.

Less than Between Over
1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years Total
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 31 December 2018
Borrowings including accrued
interests 6,332,772 12,467,555 424,580 19,224,907
Finance leases 13,605 43,391 — 56,996
Trade and other payables* 6,962,292 — — 6,962,292
Total 13,308,669 12,510,946 424,580 26,244,195
At 31 December 2017
Borrowings including accrued
interests 1,656,178 3,920,286 603,134 6,179,598
Finance leases 20,490 89,087 — 109,577
Trade and other payables* 598,080 — — 598,080
Total 2,274,748 4,009,373 603,134 6,887,255
i Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The amounts have not included financial guarantee contracts:

— which the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee for loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties (note 31). Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i)
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally be available within an
average period of two to three years upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the
satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties;

The Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as the sum of borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as shown in the

consolidated balance sheet) and loan from shareholder divided by total assets.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

Total borrowings (note 19) 14,916,337 5,355,275
Total assets 22,183,110 7,656,327
Gearing ratio 67% 70%
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(c) Fair value estimation

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 31 December 2018
Financial assets at FVTPL —
unlisted preferred shares — — 3,979,937 3,979,937

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the reporting period.

The Group did not measure any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring
basis as at 31 December 2018.

Level 1:  The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted (unadjusted)
market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted marked price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2:  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over—the—counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

o The use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

3 The fair value of foreign currency forwards is determined using forward exchange rates at the
balance sheet date.

o The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
analysis.
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(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2018:

31 December
2018
RMB’000

Unlisted redeemable preferred shares
Opening balance —
Additions 3,979,937
Gains recognised in “other gains, net” —

Closing balance 3,979,937

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team that performs the valuations of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team manages the valuation exercise of the
investments on a case by case basis. At least once every year, the team would use valuation
methodologies to determine the fair value of the Group'’s level 3 instruments. External valuation experts
will be involved when necessary.

The valuation of the level 3 instruments included the unlisted preferred shares (note 13) only. As the
investments in private companies are not traded in an active market, their fair value have been
determined by discounted cash flows. The main level 3 inputs used by the Group in measuring the fair
value of financial instruments are derived and evaluated as follows:

o Discount rates: these are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate

o That reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
asset

o Earnings growth factor for unlisted equity securities: these are estimated based on market
information for similar types of companies

o Expected cash inflows: these are estimated based on the terms of the sale contract, the entity’s
knowledge of the business and how the current economic environment is likely to impact it
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Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have
a significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a)

(b)

(9)

Provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale

Properties represent health and living project. The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale according to their recoverable amounts based on the
realisability of these properties, taking into account estimated costs to completion based on past experience
and committed contracts and estimated net sales value based on prevailing market conditions. Provision is
made when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The
assessment requires the use of judgement and estimates.

Estimated fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

The Group assesses the fair value of its financial asset at fair value through profit or loss by reference to
valuation performed by the independent and professional qualified valuer. Income approach and Binomial
Lattice Model approach are used for valuation of the fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss and it is dependent on certain key assumptions that required significant management judgement. These
include the operation projection, the timing and probability of the exercise of the call option, the weighted
average cost of capital. Detailed disclosure of the valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss is made in note 3(c) and note 13.

The change of the aforesaid key assumptions may lead to significant difference of the fair value estimation of
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

PRC corporate income taxes and deferred taxation

The Company’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject to income tax in the PRC. Management
judgement is required in determining the provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
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(d) PRC land appreciation taxes

(e)

The Group is also subject to land appreciation taxes (“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the implementation and
settlement of LAT varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC and accordingly, management
judgement is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation taxes. The Group recognised these
land appreciation taxes based on management’s best estimates according to the interpretation of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.

Recoverability of contract assets and trade and other receivables

The management assesses the recoverability of contract assets and trade and other receivables individually
with reference to the past repayment history as well as subsequent settlement status. Allowances are applied
to these receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible and require the use of estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of contract assets and trade and other receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
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The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") of the Group has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company who are responsible for reviewing the Group's internal reporting in order to assess the performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on these reports. The Group is
organised into two segments:

Health Management: “Internet+” community health management, international hospitals, elderly
care and rehabilitation, medical cosmetology, anti-ageing and sales of
health and living projects in the PRC.

New Energy Vehicle: Technology research and development, production and sales of new energy
vehicles in the PRC and in other countries.

Media (disposed in November 2017):  Magazine publishing, distribution of magazines, digital business and
provision of magazine content in Hong Kong.

Management has identified the reportable segments based on the Group’s business model and assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on profit before tax. Corporate expenses, investment income,
finance income and costs and income tax expense are not included in segment results.

(a) Revenue by type

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable from customers during the year. An analysis of
the Group's revenue by type for the year is as follows:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
Health Management

— Sales of health and living projects (a) 3,124,417 1,313,376
— Income from medical cosmetology and health management (b) 8,601 15,098
3,133,018 1,328,474
New Energy Vehicle — —

Media (discontinued operation)
— Advertising income — 74,712
— Circulation income — 24,797
— Digital business income — 85,269
— Provision of magazine content — 317
— 185,095
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(a) Revenue by type (Continued)

(@)  Revenue generated from sales of health and living projects is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the assets.

(b) Income from medical cosmetology and health management is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.

(b) Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the location where the sales occurred and information
about its non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) by geographical location of the assets are detailed

below:

Continuing operations
— United States
— PRC

Discontinued operation
— Hong Kong

2018
RMB’000

3,133,018

3,133,018

Revenue from customers

2017
RMB’000

1,328,474

1,328,474

185,095

Non-current assets

2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
3,979,937 —
2,314,511 934,217
6,294,448 934,217
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5 Segment information (continued)

(c) Segment revenue and results

The segment information provided to the CODM for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as

follows:
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation Total
Year ended 31 December Health  New Energy
2018 Management Vehicle Unallocated Sub-total Media
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Segment revenue and
revenue from external
customers 3,133,018 — — 3,133,018 — 3,133,018
Finance (costs)/income, net 11,611 (483,188) 239 (471,338) — (471,338)
Share of net loss of an
associate accounted for
using the equity method — (1,057,909) — (1,057,909) — (1,057,909)
Disposal loss of an associate — (138,253) — (138,253) — (138,253)
Segment results 606,459 (1,726,786) (11,668) (1,131,995) — (1,131,995)
Loss before income tax (1,131,995)
Income tax expense (296,383)
Loss for the year (1,428,378)
Depreciation and amortisation 5,587 22,782 — 28,369 — 28,369

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation Total
Year ended 31 December Health ~ New Energy
2017 Management Vehicle  Unallocated Sub-total Media

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Segment revenue and
revenue from external

customers 1,328,474 — — 1,328,474 185,095 1,513,569
Finance income, net 14,484 — — 14,484 — 14,484
Loss on disposal — — — — (15,956) (15,956)
Segment results 671,762 — (17,028) 654,734 (1,840) 652,894
Profit before income tax 652,8947
Income tax expense (351,479)
Profit for the year 301,415

Depreciation and
amortisation (21,047) — — (21,047) (4,255) (25,302)
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(c) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

As at 31 December 2018
Segment assets

As at 31 December 2017
Segment assets

As at 31 December 2018
Segment liabilities

Capital expenditure

As at 31 December 2017
Segment liabilities

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
Health  New Energy
Management Vehicle  Unallocated Sub-total Media Total
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
17,401,152 4,747,486 34,472 22,183,110 — 22,183,110
7,649,750 — 6,577 7,656,327 — 7,656,327
The segment assets as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
Health  New Energy
Management Vehicle  Unallocated Sub-total Media Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
16,089,993 6,256,479 499,106 22,845,578 — 22,845,578
749,989 474,760 —_ 1,224,749 — 1,224,749
6,503,366 — 320,720 6,824,086 — 6,824,086
481,001 — — 481,001 — 481,001

Capital expenditure

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, land use rights, properties under
development, completed properties held for sale, receivables, prepayments, cash balances and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. They exclude deferred tax assets.

Segment liabilities consist of operating liabilities. Unallocated liabilities comprise taxation.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, land use rights and intangible

assets.
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5 Segment information (continued)

(c) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

Segment assets 22,148,638 7,649,750
Unallocated:

Deferred income tax assets 34,472 6,577

Total assets per consolidated balance sheet 22,183,110 7,656,327

Segment liabilities 22,346,472 6,503,366
Unallocated:

Current income tax liabilities 499,106 320,720

Total liabilities per consolidated balance sheet 22,845,578 6,824,086
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(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers:

31 December

2018

RMB’000

Current contract assets relating to properties sold contracts 9,942
Loss allowance —
Total contract assets 9,942

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

31 December
2018
RMB’000

Contract liabilities 99,284

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedule as established in contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from
sales of health and living projects.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates
to carried-forward contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance of contract liabilities at
the beginning of the 2018

RMB’000

Sales of health and living projects 498,429
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6 Property, plant and equipment and land use rights

(@) Movements of property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
Machinery  fixtures and
Leasehold and office  Construction
Buildings improvements equipment equipment in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

As at 1 January 2017
Cost — 17,475 58,467 76,369 192,984 345,295
Accumulated depreciation — (8,760) (21,184) (60,753) — (90,697)
Net book amount — 8,715 37,283 15,616 192,984 254,598
Year ended 31 December

2017
Opening net book amount — 8,715 37,283 15,616 192,984 254,598
Currency translation

differences — (329) (32) (201) — (562)
Additions — 1,016 5,125 8,567 466,010 480,718
Disposals — (3,471) (23) (10) — (3,504)
Depreciation — (1,124) (11,785) (6,031) — (18,940)
Disposal of discontinued

operation — (4,643) (385) (3,257) — (8,285)
Closing net book amount — 164 30,183 14,684 658,994 704,025
As at 31 December 2017
Cost — 219 51,018 21,406 658,994 731,637
Accumulated depreciation — (55) (20,835) (6,722) — (27,612)
Net book amount — 164 30,183 14,684 658,994 704,025
Year ended 31 December

2018
Opening net book amount — 164 30,183 14,684 658,994 704,025
Additions — 2,520 24,150 16,703 805,836 849,209
Transfers 810,019 — 53,263 — (863,282) —
Depreciation — (404) (15,118) (2,787) — (18,309)
Closing net book amount 810,019 2,280 92,478 28,600 601,548 1,534,925
As at 31 December 2018
Cost 810,019 2,739 128,431 38,109 601,548 1,580,846
Accumulated depreciation — (459) (35,953) (9,509) — (45,921)
Net book amount 810,019 2,280 92,478 28,600 601,548 1,534,925
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(@) Movements of property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation charge of the Group was included in the following categories in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income:

Continuing operations
Cost of sales

Selling and marketing costs
Administrative expenses

Discontinued operation

Total depreciation

2018
RMB’000

4,370
426
13,513

18,309

18,309

2017
RMB’000

11,088
362
3,235

14,685

4,255

18,940

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged construction in progress with a net book value of approximately
RMB90,288,000 and property, plant and equipment with a net book value of approximately RMB321,631,000

to secure the borrowings of RMB640,000,000.

(b) Movements of land use rights

Land use rights are related to properties outside Hong Kong, held on leases of over 50 years: (2017: 50 years)

At 1 January
Additions
Amortisation

At 31 December

2018
RMB’000

221,923
378,480
(9,660)

590,743

Land use rights comprise cost of acquiring rights to use certain lands located in the PRC.

2017
RMB'000

226,593

(4,670)

221,923
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31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000

Trade receivables (note (a))
— third parties 225,585 213,845
Less: loss allowance for trade receivables (note (b)) (760) —
224,825 213,845

Other receivables

— third parties 156,393 223,122
— related parties (note 32(a)(ii)) 1,168 1,064
— prepaid other taxes 128,514 20,820
286,075 245,006
Less: loss allowance for other receivables (note (b)) (3,763) —
282,312 245,006
507,137 458,851

(@) Trade receivables mainly arose from sale of health and living projects. Proceeds in respect of sales of health
and living projects are to be received in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase
agreements. The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 90 days 175,076 199,422
Over 91 days and within 180 days 49,986 301
Over 180 days and within 365 days 523 14,122
225,585 213,845

The expected loss rate of the other receivables from bidding deposit for land acquisition and VAT input is
determined as zero.

(b)  The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables and other receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. On
that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 was determined for trade receivables and other
receivables (note 3(a)(iii)).
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Prepayments
— Land use rights
— Property, plant and equipment

Less: non-current portion:
— Land use rights
— Property, plant and equipment

Current portion

31 December
2018
RMB’'000

1,044,721
163,365

1,208,086

(20,279)
(163,365)

(183,644)

1,024,442

31 December
2017
RMB’'000

37,827

5,108

42,935

(5,108)

(5,108)

37,827

Prepayments mainly represented the prepayments and advances to third parties for acquisition of land use rights for
health and living projects, purchase of equipment for new energy vehicle segment.

(a) Properties under development

Properties under development comprise:
— Construction costs and capitalised expenditures
— Interests capitalised
— Land use rights

31 December
2018
RMB’'000

2,848,184
164,500
8,157,855

11,170,539

31 December
2017
RMB’000

420,815
87,553
3,021,309

3,529,677

The properties under development include costs of acquiring rights to use certain lands, which are located in
the PRC for property development over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of 40-70 years (2017:

40-70 years).

The capitalisation rate of borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2018 was 7.91% (2017: 7.54%).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged properties under development with a net book value of
approximately RMB7,823,255,000 to secure the borrowings of RMB4,075,162,000.
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(b) Completed properties held for sale

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2018, completed properties held for sale of approximately RMB138,239,000 were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings of RMB85,185,000.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, restricted cash of RMB367,825,000 (2017: RMB217,193,000) are mainly
comprised of guarantee deposits for construction of projects.

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

Cash at bank and in hand 1,570,014 1,960,047

Short-term bank deposits — 341,636

Cash and cash equivalents 1,570,014 2,301,683
Denominated in:

RMB 1,469,065 2,299,785

HK$ 16,267 1,186

uss$ 84,682 712

Cash and cash equivalents 1,570,014 2,301,683

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating daily bank deposit rates. Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at market
rates ranging from 0.03% to 0.3% (2017: 0.01% to 0.5 %).

122 Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

On 25 June 2018, the Group entered into a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement with a third party in relation to the
acquisition of Season Smart Limited (the “Target Company”). Pursuant to the aforementioned agreement, the
Group acquires the equity interest of the Target Company for a total consideration of HK$6,746,700,000 (equivalent
to RMB5,688,143,000). The consideration was paid in one lump sum on 3 July 2018.

The Company entered into a shareholder loan agreement with China Evergrande Group on 25 June 2018. Pursuant
to the shareholder loan agreement, China Evergrande Group agreed to provide a three-year unsecured loan of
HK$6,750,000,000 (equivalent to RMB5,690,925,000) to the Group. The annual interest rate was 7.6% and the
loan was provided on 3 July 2018.

The Target Company and FF Top Holding Limited jointly established a new company (Smart King Limited, “Smart
King”), the Target Company agreed to make a capital contribution of US$2 billion to obtain a 45% equity interest
in Smart King on a fully diluted basis; and FF Top Holding Limited agree to contribute technical assets and
automobile business owned by the Faraday Future Group to obtain a 33% equity interest in Smart King (on a fully
diluted basis). The remaining 22% equity interest in Smart King (on a fully diluted basis) is reserved as equity to be
issued and be allotted to the employees in accordance with the equity incentive plan.

Following completion of the acquisition, with the appointment of 2 out of 7 directors to the board of directors, the
Target Company becomes an associate company of the Group, the Group adopts equity accounting method to
account for Smart King.

On 18 July 2018, in order to give full support to Smart King’s development, the Target Company, Smart King and
FF Top Holding Limited (”Original Shareholder”) entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant to the
agreement, the Target Company agreed to pay in advance US$700 million subject to fulfilment of payment
conditions.

There were certain arbitrations and litigations during October to December 2018.
On 31 December 2018, the Company, the Target Company, Smart King and other relevant parties entered into a
restructuring agreement (the “Restructuring Agreement”). The major terms of the Restructuring Agreement include
the following:
(i)  The Target Company's investment into Smart King was restructured as follows:
o ownership of 32% (on a fully diluted basis) preference shares in Smart King;
o ownership of 100% shares in Evergrande Faraday Future Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (renamed
Evergrande Intelligent Automotive (Hong Kong) Limited) (“FF HK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Smart
King, together with other rights under the Restructuring Agreement, at an aggregate consideration of
US$200 million. FF HK owns relevant assets of Faraday Future Group in the PRC.
(i) All the original agreements are terminated with immediate effect. The Target Company will no longer be
required to make additional investment into Smart King pursuant to the original agreements. No appointment

of director to the board of directors. The Target Company has also agreed to release all securities and charges.

(iii)  The parties have agreed to withdraw and waive all current litigations and arbitration proceedings, and all
rights to any future claims.
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(iv)  Original Shareholder is entitled to a call option (the “Call Option”) to purchase the Target Company’s 32%
shares within 5 years. The exercise price of the Call Option is follows:

Exercise within the 1st year: US$600 million

Exercise within the 2nd year: US$700 million
Exercise within the 3rd year: US$800 million
Exercise within the 4th year: US$920 million
Exercise within the 5th year: US$1.05 billion

The movements of the interests in an associate was as follows:

RMB’000
Investment and related expenses paid 5,688,075
Payable of further capital contribution 7,356,017
Total investment cost 13,044,092
Share of post-tax loss of an associate for period upon investment ended 31 December 2018 (1,057,909)
Waiver of further capital contribution at fair value accords with Restructuring Agreement (7,616,307)
Acquisition of FF HK at fair value (422,735)
Net loss on de-recognition (note 24) (138,253)
Currency translation difference 171,049
Reclassification to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 13) 3,979,937

31 December
2018
RMB’000

Unlisted redeemable preferred shares (note 12) 3,979,937

(i) Valuation processes

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value. The fair value of the Group’s financial assets has been
determined on the basis of valuation carried out by Globalview Advisors LLC, an independent and
professionally qualified valuer.

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the management and the valuer at least once
every six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates.
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(ii) Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the following:

Unlisted redeemable preferred shares

(iii) Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (level 3)

Asset Category

FVTPL

Fair value as at
31 December
2018

RMB’000

3,979,937

Valuation
techniques

Discounted Cash
Flow Method

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:

The higher WACC, the lower fair value;
The higher Terminal Growth Rate, the higher fair value;
The higher Debt-Free Net Cash Flows, the higher fair value.

Unobservable inputs

Weighted Average Cost of
Capital ("WACC")

Terminal Growth Rate
Debt-Free Net Cash Flows
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Assets as per consolidated balance sheet

Loans and receivables

Restricted cash (note 10)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 11)

Trade and other receivables excluding prepaid other taxes (note 7)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Borrowings (note 19)

Trade and other payables, excluding staff welfare benefit payable
and other taxes payable (note 18)

31 December
2018
RMB’000

367,825
1,570,014
378,623

2,316,462

3,979,937

6,296,399

14,916,337

6,962,292

21,878,629

Number of shares

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
At 31 December 2018 and 2017

8,640,000,000

31 December
2017
RMB’000

217,193
2,301,683
438,031

2,956,907

2,956,907

5,355,275

598,080

5,953,355

Amount
RMB’000

250,936

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31 December

2018.
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Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(9)

(d)

(e)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the differences between the aggregate amount of share capital
and share premium of the relevant subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation scheme.

Capital contribution reserve

The amount represent deemed capital contribution and deregistration of a subsidiary in 2006 and 2008,
respectively.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the deemed contribution arising from discounting of the non-current interest-free
loans from fellow subsidiaries.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of group entities with fluctuation currency other than RMB. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 2.6(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations concerning foreign investment enterprise established in the PRC
and the articles of association of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group, those subsidiaries are required to
transfer an amount of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of
fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. Statutory reserve is non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the board of directors of the relevant PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.
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18 Trade and Other Payables and Contract Liabilities

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade and other payables:
Trade payables 5,299,958 155,560
Other payables to:
— third parties 1,056,409 298,127
— related companies (note 32(a)(ii)) 605,925 136,210
Staff welfare benefit payable 12,609 13,178
Other taxes payable 119,054 29,291
Interest payable 236,896 8,183
2,030,893 484,989
Total trade and other payables 7,330,851 640,549
Contract liabilities from:
— sale of health and living projects 75,216 —
— other customers 24,068 —
Total contract liabilities 99,284 —
Receipt in advance from:
— sale of health and living projects — 505,450
— other customers — 2,092
Total receipt in advance — 507,542

The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 days to 90 days from its suppliers. The following is an aging analysis

of trade payables based on the invoice date at the reporting date:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

Age
0-90 days 5,118,229 147,846
91-180 days 58,644 3,229
Over 180 days 123,085 4,485
5,299,958 155,560
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18 Trade and Other Payables and Contract Liabilities (continued)

The Group's trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

RMB 7,148,771 506,179
HK$ 73 4
us$ 182,007 134,366
7,330,851 640,549

19 Borrowings

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

Bank borrowings 2,196,400 5,259,400
Shareholder borrowings (note 32(a)(ii)) 5,690,925 —
Other borrowings (note a) 6,975,000 —
Borrowings excluding finance leases (note b) 14,862,325 5,259,400
Finance leases (note ¢) 54,012 95,875
Total borrowings 14,916,337 5,355,275

(a) Other borrowings

Certain group companies in the PRC which are engaged in development of real estate projects have entered
into fund arrangements with certain financial institutions (the “Trustees”), respectively, pursuant to which
Trustees raised trust funds and injected the funds to the group companies. All the funds bear fixed interest

rates and have fixed repayment terms.
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(b) Borrowings excluding finance leases

Borrowings

Less: non-current borrowings

Current borrowings

31 December
2018
RMB’000

14,862,325
(11,248,425)

3,613,900

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's borrowings were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

Over 5 years

31 December
2018
RMB’000

3,613,900
3,467,500
7,390,925

390,000

14,862,325

31 December
2017
RMB’000

5,259,400
(3,720,000)

1,539,400

31 December
2017
RMB’000

1,539,400
2,400,000
920,000
400,000

5,259,400

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowings of RMB7,513,900,000 (2017: RMB3,959,400,000) were
secured by pledge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, land use rights, properties under
development, completed properties held for sale, cash in bank, intangible asset, account receivables and
equity interests of certain subsidiaries, totalling RMB10,005,096,000 (2017: RMB4,760,671,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the interest rate of borrowings of RMB14,862,325,000 (2017:
RMB4,926,200,000) was fixed to 8.75% (2017: 8.68%) per annum. Interest expense on borrowings for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is RMB686,007,000 (2017: RMB191,433,000).

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
RMB

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited
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(b) Borrowings excluding finance leases (Continued)

(9)

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings approximate their fair values due to its short maturities. The

carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current borrowings are as follows:

Long-term bank loans
Other long-term loans
Shareholder loans

The fair value of the Group’s bank borrowings, other borrowings and shareholder borrowings approximates
their carrying amounts at each of the balance sheet date for the reason that the impact of discounting is not

Carrying amount

31 December
2018
RMB’000

2,170,000
3,387,500
5,690,925

31 December
2017
RMB’000

3,720,000

significant or the borrowings carry floating rate of interests.

Finance leases

The Group leases various construction in progress with a carrying amount of RMB100,878,000 (2017:
RMB100,878,000) under finance leases expiring with three years. Under the terms of the leases, the Group
has the option to acquire the leased assets for 50% of their agreed fair value on expiry of the leases. This
option lapses in the event the Group fails to maintain its credit rating at the level prevailing at inception of the

lease.

Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows:

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Minimum lease payments

Future finance charges

Total lease liabilities

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Fair value

31 December
2018
RMB’000

2,115,860
3,387,500
5,690,925

31 December
2018
RMB’000

13,605
45,866

59,471

(5.459)

54,012

8,705
45,307

54,012

Annual Report 2018

31 December
2017
RMB’000

3,226,331

31 December
2017
RMB’000

20,490
89,087

109,577

(13,702)

95,875

18,710
77,165

95,875
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The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follow:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets, net

31 December
2018
RMB’000

34,472

34,472

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and movements thereon during the year:

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

RMB’000

As at 1 January 2017 (485)
Credited to profit or loss

for the year —

Currency translation differences 485

As at 31 December 2017

Credited/(charged) to profit or
loss for the year

As at 31 December 2018

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

Bad debt
provision
RMB’000

1,130

1,130

Unrealised
profit of
intercom

transaction
RMB’000

120

120

Disposal of

Tax losses  a subsidiary

RMB'000 RMB'000

3,721 382
2,736

— (382)

6,457 —

26,781 —

33,238 —

31 December

2017
RMB'000

6,577

6,577

Total
RMB'000

3,618

2,856
103

6,577

27,895

34,472
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At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately RMB357,195,000 (2017:
RMB81,394,000) available for offset against future profits. As at 31 December 2018, a deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of approximately RMB132,952,000 (2017: RMB26,307,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining RMB224,243,000 (2017: RMB55,087,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2018 are losses of
approximately RMB224,243,000 (2017: RMB55,087,000) that will expire in the following years:

Year RMB 000
2022 41,572
2023 182,671

224,243

An analysis of major expenses as stated in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and administrative expenses is

as follows:

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

Cost of inventories 1,836,265 442,667
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ emoluments) (note 22) 195,742 107,670
Employee benefit expenditure (including directors’ emoluments) 330,357 157,171

Less: capitalised in properties under development and

construction in progress (134,615) (49,501)
Auditor’s remuneration 6,849 2,405
— Audit services 2,696 2,405
— Non-audit services 4,153 —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18,309 14,685
Net exchange loss/(gain) 708 (4,674)
Operating lease expenses 21,824 2,196
Amortisation of land use rights 9,660 4,670
Amortisation of intangible assets 399 1,692
Legal expenses 47,533 20
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22 Employee Benefit Expenses — Including Directors’ Emoluments

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wages and salaries 179,732 89,118
Pension cost — defined contribution plans 16,010 18,552
195,742 107,670
23 Other Costs, Net

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

Other income
— Investment income — 7,463
— Income recognised upon expiry of prepaid cards — 2,507
— Others 13 1,405
13 11,375

Other costs
— Other tax expenses — (12,242)
— Other (789) (556)
(789) (12,798)
Other costs, net (776) (1,423)
24 Other Losses

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
Loss on disposal of an associate (note 12) 138,253 —
Others 3,586 —
141,839 —
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25 Finance (Costs)/Income

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

Finance income
— Bank interest income 21,155 20,609

Finance costs

— Interest expense on borrowings (703,945) (191,433)
— Interest expense on finance leases (11,589) (3,140)
— Less: interest capitalised 483,331 188,437
(232,203) (6,136)
Other finance costs (note a) (260,290) —
Finance costs (492,493) (6,136)
Finance (costs)/income, net (471,338) 14,473

(@)  Other finance costs is the amortisation cost of the payables of further capital contribution for the investment

in Smart King (note 12).

Annual Report 2018

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to profit or loss represents:

Current income tax:
PRC corporate income tax
PRC land appreciate tax
Deferred income tax

Income tax expense
(Loss)/profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits
in the respective countries
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for PRC corporate income tax expense
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Temporary difference not recognised
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised

PRC corporate income tax
PRC land appreciation tax

Hong Kong profits tax

2018
RMB’'000

196,508
127,770
(27,895)

296,383

(1,131,995)

(282,999)
(31,943)
437,887

45,668

168,613
127,770

296,383

2017
RMB'000

125,118
227,515
(2,856)

349,777

654,734

165,131
(56,879)
3,193
424
10,393

122,262
227,515

349,777

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December

2018 (2017: 16.5%).

PRC corporate income tax

PRC corporate income tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: 25%). The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in the PRC has been calculated
at the applicable tax rate of 25% on the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds of sales of health and living projects less deductible including land use rights and all property

development expenditures.

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited
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The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (RMB cents per share) (note (a))
— from continuing operations
— from discontinued operation

(@)  As there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, diluted (loss)/

earnings per share equals basic earnings/(loss) per share.

2018
RMB’'000

8,640,000,000

(16.544)

(16.544)
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2017
RMB'000

8,640,000,000

3.599

(0.037)

3.562
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(a) Cash used in operations

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance income (note 25)
Finance costs (note 25)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 6(a))
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of land use rights (note 6(b))
Loss on disposal of discontinued operation
Exchange loss/(gain) (note 21)
Investment income
Share of loss of investments accounted for using the equity method
(note 12)
Loss on disposal of an associate (note 12)

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Increase in inventories, properties under development
and completed properties held for sale
Increase in trade and other receivables and contract assets
Increase in trade and other payables and contract liabilities

Increase in restricted cash

Cash used in operations

2018
RMB’'000

(1,131,995)

(21,155)
492,493
18,309
399
9,660

708

1,057,909
138,253

564,581

(9,502,260)

(217,434)
6,041,230

(150,632)

(3,264,515)

(b) Reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities

Finance leases Finance leases Borrowings
due within due after due within
1 year 1 year 1 year
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Total debt as at
1 January 2018 18,710 77,165 1,539,400
Interest paid (3,443) (31,858) —
Repayment of capital
element of finance leases (6,562) — —
Repayments of borrowings — — (2,839,400)
Proceeds from interest-
bearing borrowings — — 4,913,900
Total debt as at
31 December 2018 8,705 45,307 3,613,900

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

Borrowings
due after

1 year
RMB’000

3,720,000

(850,000)

8,378,425

11,248,425

2017
RMB'000

654,734

(20,609)
6,136
14,685
2,788
4,670
3,542
(4,674)
(7,463)

653,809

(2,520,361)
(383,285)
549,715

(1,700,122)

Total
RMB’000

5,355,275
(35,301)

(6,562)
(3,689,400)

13,292,325

14,916,337
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(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not yet incurred is as follows:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
Acquisition of land use rights 805,292 —

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments in relation of related premises and machineries
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within one year 24,092 633
In the first to second year 18,996 —
In the second to third year 10,226 —
In the third to fourth year 5,448 —
58,762 633

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for certain purchasers
of the Group's property units 602,962 140,410

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i)
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally be available within an average period of two to
three years upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (i) the satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the
purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the mortgages. The directors consider
that the likelihood of default in payments by purchasers is minimal and the financial guarantees measured at fair
value is immaterial.
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The Group is controlled by China Evergrande Group, which owns 74.99% of the Company'’s shares. The remaining
25.01% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Xin Xin (BVI) Limited, incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Dr. Hui Ka Yan.

Name Relationship
China Evergrande Group Intermediate controlling company
Evergrande Health Industry Holdings Limited Parent company
Evergrande Life Assurance Co.,, Ltd. Joint venture of the Group’s holding company
Guangzhou Evergrande Taobao Football Club Co.,, Ltd. Joint venture of the Group’s holding company
Hengda Real Estate Tianjin Expo International Center Fellow subsidiary
Company Ltd.
Guangzhou Jiasui Real Estate Company Ltd. Fellow subsidiary
Chengdu Jintang Hengda Hotel Company Ltd. Fellow subsidiary
Hengda Shijicheng (Qingyuan) Hotel Company Ltd. Fellow subsidiary
Liaoning Hengyang Health Industry Company Ltd. Joint venture

(a) Related party transactions and balances

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following significant transactions with related parties,
which were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s business:

(i) Transactions with companies related to China Evergrande Group:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
Borrowings guaranteed by intermediate controlling company 1,947,500 —
Interest charged by intermediate controlling company 222,898 —
Interest charged by joint venture of the Group’s holding
company 35,522 —
Integrated insurance procurement 62,257 —
Operating revenue 1,566 —
Operating lease 14,453 155
Advertising expenses 569 37
Miscellaneous charges and fees 435 1,234
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(a) Related party transactions and balances (Continued)

(ii)) Balances with companies related to China Evergrande Group:

Due from related parties:
— fellow subsidiaries
— parent company
— joint venture

Due to related parties (note 18):
— intermediate controlling company
— fellow subsidiaries
— parent company
— joint venture of the Group’s holding company

Loans from intermediate controlling company (note 19)

Loans from joint venture of the Group’s holding company

The receivables arise mainly from cash advance to fellow subsidiaries for daily operation purpose. The
receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest and repayable on demand. No provisions are held

against receivables from fellow subsidiaries (2017: nil).

The payables arise mainly from purchase transactions and are due two months after the date of

purchase. The payables bear no interest (2017: nil).

31 December
2018
RMB’'000

2,133

766

2,904

405,448
199,907

570

605,925

5,690,925

10,000,000

31 December
2017
RMB’'000

1,064

1,064

1,844
134,366

136,210

Loans from intermediate controlling company are unsecured with the interest rate of 7.6%.

Loans from joint venture of the Group’s holding company are guaranteed with the interest rate of

13.09%.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) of the Company. The compensation paid or

payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

The emoluments of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows:

Short-term benefits
Contribution to a retirement benefit scheme

2018
RMB’'000

2,657
43

2,700
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2017
RMB’000

1,078
9

1,087
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)]

(2)

(3)

Acquisition on Mini Minor

On 15 January 2019, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with a third party in relation to
the acquisition of 100% equity interest of Mini Minor Limited (“Mini Minor”) with a consideration of
US$930,000,000. China Evergrande Group has agreed to provide a three-year unsecured loan in the amount
of US$1,100,000,000 to the Group at an interest rate of 8% per annum.

The only asset of the Mini Minor Limited is its 51% shareholding in National Energy Vehicle Sweden AB
("NEVS™). NEVS, with its headquarters based in Sweden, is a global electric vehicle company focused on
intelligent automobiles.

Pursuant to the NEVS Investment Agreement, Mini Minor holds a 51% equity interest in NEVS and the total
investment amount is US$1,100,000,000. Part of the consideration (being US$747,000,000) was paid by Mini
Minor prior to the date of this announcement, and the remaining balance of the consideration will be paid by
Mini Minor on or before 30 June 2019. Mini Minor has additionally invested US$153,000,000 in the form of a
shareholder loan.

Pursuant to the NEVS Shareholder Agreement entered into between, among others, the directors appointed
by Mini Minor shall compose of the majority of the NEVS Board.

NEVS’ investment agreement

On 29 January 2019, NEVS entered into the Transaction Agreement with Spirit of Performance AB (“SOP")
and Alpraaz AB, Alpraaz AB agreed to issue and allot to NEVS, and NEVS agreed to subscribe for the New
Shares and hold 20% equity interest of Alpraaz AB with an aggregate consideration of EUR150 million. SOP is
indirectly held the equity interest of KAAB through Alpraaz AB.

On 29 January 2019, NEVS also entered into the Joint Venture Agreement with Koenigsegg Automotive AB (a
subsidiary of SOP, “KAAB”), to the establishment of the Project Company. The Project Company will be
owned as to 65% by NEVS and as to 35% by KAAB. KAAB, a supercar company based in Sweden, is one of
the supercar brand names at the forefront of the world.

Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, NEVS shall make a series of investments in the Project Company in
the form of unconditional shareholder’s contributions, amounting to a total of US$150 million as agreed mile
stone.

Acquisition on CENAT

On 24 January 2019, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with a third party in relation to
the acquisition of 58.07% equity interest of Shanghai CENAT New Energy Company Limited (“CENAT") with
a consideration of RMB1,059,778,000. CENAT is established in the PRC and is one of the leading enterprises
in the industry focusing on ternary pouch type power battery

Pursuant to the Share Sale and Purchase Agreement, if any of the conditions precedent which has not been
waived or any of the payment conditions for the third instalment is not fulfilled or waived by the Group by 30
April 2019, the Group shall have the right to demand the termination of the Share Sale and Purchase
Agreement.
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Balance sheet of the Company

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due from parent company
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves (note a)

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Current liabilities
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to parent company
Amounts due to intermediate controlling company
Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and was signed on

its behalf.

SHI SHOUMING
Director

As at 31 December

2018
RMB’'000

4,402,671

22,559
589,002
549

5
42,847
654,962

5,057,633

250,936
(1,512,614)

(1,261,678)

5,690,925

628,330
56

628,386
6,319,311

5,057,633

PENG JIANJUN
Director
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2017
RMB'000

530
273,946

344,134
618,610

618,610

250,936
233,277

484,213

31
134,366

134,397
134,397

618,610
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(@) Reserve movement of the Company

Retained
Earnings/
Merger Exchange (accumulated
reserve reserve losses) Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 2017 68,050 (8,321) 223,681 283,410
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year — — (21,967) (21,967)
Other comprehensive loss — (28,166) — (28,166)
Total comprehensive loss — (28,166) (21,967) (50,133)
Balance at 31 December 2017 68,050 (36,487) 201,714 233,277
At 1 January 2018 68,050 (36,487) 201,714 233,277
Comprehensive loss
Loss for the year — — (1,567,393) (1,567,393)
Other comprehensive loss — (178,498) — (178,498)
Total comprehensive loss — (178,498) (1,567,393) (1,745,891)
At 31 December 2018 68,050 (214,985) (1,365,679) (1,512,614)

The merger reserve of the Company represented the difference between the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries at the date of the group reorganisation and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued.

At 31 December 2018, the Company'’s reserves has no available for distribution (2017: RMB201,714,000) as
calculated.

144 Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section 383

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure

of Information About Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and
Hong Kong Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of directors and the Chief Executive for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking

Employer’s

Contribution

Estimated toa

money value retirement

of other benefit
Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Shi Shouming(note a) 115 — — — 115
Tan Chaohui(note b) 65 — — — 65
Han Xiaoran (note c) — — — — —
Peng Jianjun(note d) 69 — — — 69
Li Siquan(note e) — 2,057 63 — 2,120
Qin Liyong(note f) — — — — —
Chau Shing Yim, David 300 — — — 300
Guo Jianwen 300 — — — 300
Xie Wu 300 —_ —_ —_ 300
Total emoluments 1,149 2,057 63 — 3,269

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

)

Appointed on 11 May 2018

Resigned on 11 May 2018

Resigned on 20 July 2018

Appointed on 14 August 2018

Appointed on 20 July 2018, and resigned on 1 February 2019

Appointed on 1 February 2019
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(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of directors and the Chief Executive for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking

Employer’s

contribution

Estimated toa

money value retirement

of other benefit
Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Tan Chaohui 175 — — 9 184
Peng Sheng 12 — — — 12
Han Xiaoran — — — — —
Chau Shing Yim, David 291 — — — 291
Guo Jianwen 300 — — — 300
Xie Wu 300 — — — 300
Total emoluments 1,078 — — 9 1,087

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

Except for the details disclosed in note 35(a), none of the directors of the Company received or will receive
any retirement benefits or termination benefits in respect of their services to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not paid any consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services to the Company (2017: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the Group in favour of the directors of
the Company, or body corporate controlled by or entities connected with any of the directors of the Company
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017: nil).
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35 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure
of Information About Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and

Hong Kong Listing Rules) (continued)

(f) Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the five highest paid individual include three of the directors (2017:
none), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 34(a). The aggregate amounts of
emoluments of the other five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out

below:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
Salaries and other benefits 10,383 15,057

The emoluments fell within the following bands:
2018 2017
HK$1 — HK$1,000,000 — _
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 — —
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 5 3
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 — —
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 — 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 — 1

36 Subsidiaries

Particulars of principal subsidiaries

Place of Issued and fully Percentage of

incorporation/  paid share capital/ attributable equity
Name operation paid-in capital interest held Principal activities

directly indirectly
Right Bliss Limited BVI Us$1 100% —  Investment holdings
Flaming Ace Limited BVI Us$1 100% —  Investment holdings
Brave Beauty Limited Hong Kong HK$10 — 100%  Investment holdings
SWIFT WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED Hong Kong HKS1 — 100%  Investment holdings
ERERERARED) Hong Kong HK$1 — 100%  Investment holdings
Best Wealth Development Limited

KABRAA BVI US$1 100% —  Investment holdings

Season Smart Limited
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Name

ENTEFESHERR
Guangzhou Huiyu Tradlng Co., Ltd.

EMDIHRREXRRAT
Guangzhou Kaishang Health Industry
Co., Ltd.

REEARREARREBRA
Tianjin Evergrande Wonjin Beauty
Hospital Co., Ltd.

EMNBXERBEREERA
Guangzhou Evergrande Health Medical
Investment Co., Ltd.

EMTERREEMNDHERAF
Guangzhou Haizhu  Henghui Clinic
Co., Ltd.

EEEEMZHBERL
Jinan Henghui Clinic Co., Ltd.

ERZNEEFYEER AR
Jinan Oasis Henghui Clinic Co., Ltd.

HEMEBEREEERAR
Nanchang Henghui Hosp|ta|
Management Co., Ltd.

RFHEBPIDHERA
Shijiazhuang Henghui C||n|c Co., Ltd.

BT EEREREERAF

Luoyang Henghui Health Service Co., Ltd.

AEERFIZHBER LA
Chengdu Henghui Clinic Co., Ltd.

RYTEBPIZHERA
Changsha Henghui Chmc Co., Ltd.

REEBREXAREERA
Wuhan Henghui Health Consultmg
Service Co., Ltd.

BEEARRREERL

Hainan Evergrande Intemationa\ Medical
Co., Ltd.

R ERSBERRERELRT
Shenzhen Evergrande Digital Technology
Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporation/
operation

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (i)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

Particulars of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
paid-in capital

RMB19,085,700

RMB5,000,000,000

RMB53,000,000

RMB 15,000,000

RMB4,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB200,000,000

RMB5,000,000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Percentage of
attributable equity

interest held
directly indirectly

— 100%

— 100%

— 96.25%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

Wholesales of home care and
healthcare products

Wholesales of cosmetic products
and provision of healthcare
services

Provision of healthcare services

Investment holding

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of hospital
management, software and
advertisement design service

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of information
technology consultancy
services



Particulars of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

BT ARERRAFIZBER LN
Shenyang Yuhong Henghui Polyclinic
Co., Ltd.

REEEZREAERAR
Tianjin Hengmei Zhiyuan Beauty Hospital
Co., Ltd.

ARBERREZRRAF
Xian Hengning Health Property Co., Ltd.

EMEERZRBEERLH

Danzhou Henghai Pension Service Co.,Ltd.

BHEZRREERRRAF
Zhengzhou Hengzetong Health Property e
Co., Ltd.

BNTREE HERAT
Guangzhou Songci Trading Co., Ltd.

EMBXIEREEERBERAF
Guangzhou Evergrande Yayuan Health
Management Service Co., Ltd

HLEEERHNREREERBEARAF
Foshan Nanhai Evergrande Yujin Health
Management Service Co., Ltd.

EMTEEE HBR AN
Guangzhou Huiyuan Trading Co., Ltd.

BMNeEEEREREER AR
Guangzhou Jinbi Garden Pension Service
Co., Ltd.

RO MENREEEREERAF
Chansha Hengyun Health Management
Service Co., Ltd.

EMEBEEERBERAR
Guangzhou Hengze Health Service Co., Ltd.

EMTEER5BR AR
Guangzhou Nanhuang Trading Co., Ltd.

=hERERERERAR
Sanya Evergrande Health Care Co., Ltd.

BT EERERBERAR

Foshan Yujia Pension Service Co., Ltd.

EEREEREZRBERL

Jinan Xilehui Pension Service Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporation/
operation

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (i)

PRC (iii)

PRC iii)

PRC (i)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (iii)

PRC (iii)

Issued and fully

paid share capital/

paid-in capital

RMB1,000,000

RMB5,000,000

RMB25,000,000

RMB24,784,519

RMB10,000,000

RMB3,000,000

RMB3,911

RMB129,000,000

RMB3,000,000

RMB1,000,000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Percentage of
attributable equity

interest held
directly indirectly

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Develop and sales of living units

Develop and sales of living units

Wholesales of home care and
healthcare products

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Wholesales of home care and
healthcare products

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Wholesales of home care and
healthcare products

Develop and sales of living units

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services
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Name

EMBBBEXAFIDERAR

Guangzhou Hengli Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.

BEEEEAEREEXARRER LR
Hainan Boao Evergrande International
Medical Beauty Hospital Co., Ltd.

R TEARBEHBERAF

Shenzhen Evergrande Equipment Trading

Co., Ltd.

BEEEEARREENRARAT

Hainan Boao Evergrande Health Medicine

Technology Co., Ltd.

HRIEEREEREAMDHERLT
Nanjin Hengyahui Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.

AABRRREZRRAF

Hebei Evergrande Huanshen Property

Co., Ltd.

BHEEREFARRE

Hainan Deguangrun Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd.

ERECREERERAR

Guiyang Hengren Health Property Co., Ltd.

BRmERERERAH

Yangzhong hengrui Property Co., Ltd.

BHEEERERERAR

Hainan Boao Hengkang Hospital Co., Ltd.

BREEERERAR

Nanjing Hengkang Property Co., Ltd.

RINEBHBEERDH

Shenzhen Hengyan Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.

REERERREBRAF

Tianjie Yuntai (Xiuwu) Investment Co., Ltd.

AZBABREREZRBELF

Xian Evergrande Health and Pension Service

Co., Ltd.

EVNEERIELEI NG
Evergrande Hengkang Property
Management Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporation/
operation

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (iii)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (iii)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

Particulars of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
paid-in capital

RMB1,000,000

RMB200,000,000

RMB1,000,000,000

RMB21,000,000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Percentage of
attributable equity

interest held
directly indirectly

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 85%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 60%

— 100%

— 70%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Wholesales of home care and
healthcare products

Research and development of
pharmaceutical

Provision of healthcare services

Real estate development and
operation

Production of medical equipment

Provision of healthcare services

Real estate development and
operation

Provision of healthcare services

Real estate development and
operation

Provision of healthcare services

Real estate development and
operation

Provision of care services for

elderly and handicapped

Develop and sales of living units



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Particulars of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/  paid share capital/ attributable equity

Name operation paid-in capital interest held Principal activities

directly indirectly

BINEERENRERAR PRC (iii) — — 100%  Wholesales of home care and
Guangzhou Henglong Equipment and healthcare products
Materials Co., Ltd.

BINE BRI BRAR PRC (iii) — — 100%  Landscaping project
Guangzhou Yiheng Landscaping Co., Ltd.

AREAEREXERAA PRC (i) RMB209,010,000 — 100%  Provision of care services for
Nanjin Henghe Health Industry Co., Ltd. elderly and handicapped

BREMEAETE ABAREREBRBRRL PRC (i) RMB30,000 100% —  Pension care
Jinan Lichen Wangsheren Evergrande Elderly
Day Care Centre

HHERRREXERAR PRC () RMB300,000,000 — 40%  Provision of care services for
Hunan Hengsheng Health Industry Co., Ltd. elderly and handicapped

BREERREETE(FEEEERAE  PRC() RMB633,003,115 — 100%  Investment holdings
Evergrande FF Intelligent Automotive (China)

Co., Ltd.

EEEERE(ER) BB PRC (i) - — 100% Retail of smart mobility
HaoJun Life Service (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.

BRAEHEER)ERAR PRC (i) — — 100%  Retail of smart mobility
Evergrande Automotive Sales (Guangdong)

Co., Ltd.

BABEZRE(ER)ERAT PRC (i) RMB632,390,000 — 100%  Sales and manufacturing of
Evergrande Intelligence Vehicle (Guangdong) smart mobility
Co., Ltd.

BAEERZ(ER)BRAF PRC (i) — — 100%  Sales and manufacturing of
Evergrande Intelligence Technology smart mobility
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.

BAREAEEB)ERAA HK US$100,000,000 — 100%  Investment holdings

Evergrande FF Holding (Hong Kong) Limited

A Subsidiary incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2018

(i) These subsidiaries are wholly-owned foreign enterprises in the PRC.

(ii) These subsidiaries are sino-foreign co-operative joint venture in the PRC. Each of these entities is considered as a subsidiary of the Group
because the Group has majority voting rights on the board of directors and its strategic, operating, investing and financing activities are

controlled by the Group.

(iii) These subsidiaries are domestic enterprises in the PRC.
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Revenue

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax (expenses)/credit

(Loss)/profit for the year/period

Other comprehensive (loss)/income,

net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year/period

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

For the

year ended
31 December
2018
RMB’000

3,133,018

(1,131,995)
(296,383)

(1,428,378)

(66,331)

(1,494,709)

As at

31 December
2018
RMB’000

6,328,920
15,854,190

22,183,110

(662,468)

11,293,732
11,551,846

22,845,578

22,183,110

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

For the

year ended
31 December
2017
RMB’'000

1,328,474

654,734
(349,777)

301,415

3,193

304,608

As at

31 December
2017
RMB’000

940,794
6,715,533

7,656,327

832,241

3,797,165
3,026,921

6,824,086

7,656,327

Five Years Financial Summary

For the

year ended
31 December
2016
RMB’'000
(Restated)

213,531

93,242
(43,722)

50,188

7,510

57,698

As at

31 December
2016
RMB’000
(Restated)

734,881
2,087,555

2,822,436

566,851

1,120,619
1,134,966

2,255,585

2,822,436

For the

year ended
31 December
2016
HK$'000

528,132

109,926
(51,373)

58,553

(38,276)

20,277

As at

31 December
2016
HK$'000

821,544
2,333,739

3,155,283

633,700

1,252,773
1,268,810

2,521,583

3,155,283

For the

18 months
ended

31 December
2015
HK$'000

638,260

92,951
3,513

96,464

(3,054)

93,410

As at

31 December
2015
HK$'000

249,601
610,841

860,442

579,813

126,071
154,558

280,629

860,442

For the
year ended
30 June
2014
HK$'000

455,624

12,914
(1,895)

11,019

11,019

As at
30 June 2014
HK$'000

320,084
192,154

512,238

456,060

2,575
53,603

56,178

512,238





